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Rupalta is a residential property that takes its name from a colonial land grant once located on the west bank of the Susquehanna 
River in Harford County. On June 27 1661, surveyor Robert Clark laid off 300 acres for Henry Stockett, as part of a resurvey of 
the older grants of Upper Stockett and Stockett's Chance. The grant covered portions of present-day Havre de Grace, and areas to 
the north and to the northwest of the city. Subsequent family names associated with the property include Mitchell, Barnes, Gover, 
Hopkins, Baker, Salemla, and Stephens. In the early nineteenth century, the plot was reduced to 200 acres and by 1880 it had been 
further reduced to 80 acres. During the first half of the twentieth century, the property was a dairy farm, known as Rupalta Dairy. 
The remaining agricultural land was sold off during the 1950s and has since been developed into residential subdivisions. 

The property is located on the north side of Superior Street (MD 155) in within the northwest corporate limits of Havre de Grace. 
The 1.68 acre plot contains a dwelling, an agricultural outbuilding, and a modern workshop. The property was previously 
documented on two Maryland Inventory of Historic Properties (MIHP) forms. Rupalta (HA-824, also called the Stephens-Hopkins 
House) was documented in 1976. The Stephens-Hopkins Milkhouse (HA-825), which is located on the same parcel of land as the 
house, was individually identified and surveyed in 1976. This documentation serves to supplement and update the existing MIHP 
forms and to provide a determination of eligibility for the complex as a whole. To clarify the previous naming and survey of the 
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property, the property will be referred to as Rupalta in this form. The locations of the house and the milkhouse were incorrectly 
mapped on the original inventory form, and consequently on the MIHP Geographic Information System (GIS) data layer. Correct 
mapping is included with this form. 

Portions of the house may date to as early as the 1790s, but it has been enlarged and altered, and today is reflective of the Colonial 
Revival style residential architecture of the early twentieth century. The dwelling consists of a two-and-one-half-story main block 
with a side-gabled roof, and a rear-facing ell projecting from the east side of the north elevation. According to the current property 
owner, the ell may be the oldest section of the house. Roofing material consists of asphalt shingles and the frame walls are clad 
with vinyl siding. There are two interior end brick chimneys on the main block and an exterior end chimney on the ell. The house 
rests on a stone foundation. 

The facade, or south elevation, features four evenly spaced gabled dormers that are sided with wood shingles and have six-over-six 
double hung sash windows. Second floor windows consist of four six-over-six double hung sashes flanked with vinyl shutters. 
The front entrance is sheltered by a shed roof porch that has a box cornice with dentil molding, round columns joined by a wood 
balustrade, and fluted pilasters adjoined to the house. The porch has a bead board ceiling, a wood porch floor, and wood porch 
steps with wood hand rails. The glazed and wood paneled front entrance door is flanked with leaded glass sidelights. Previous 
documentation of the property indicates that there was a twelve light transom over the door; however, this feature has since been 
covered with siding. A photograph of the house taken in 1976 shows a wood balustrade on top of the porch, but it no longer 
exists. The first floor fenestration of the facade consists of a three-part casement window to the north of the porch and two six-
over-six double hung sash windows to the south. 

The west elevation features an interior end brick chimney and a steeply pitched gable end. Two four-pane fixed attic lights are the 
only fenestration on this elevation. 

The north, or rear, elevation has asymmetrical fenestration. Two six-over-six double hung sash windows are visible on the north 
end of the main block. There is a two-story projection at the intersection of the main block and the ell, which has one large metal 
single pane sash window, a small narrow fixed pane window, and a six-over-six double hung sash window. Fenestration on the ell 
consists of irregularly spaced six-over-six double hung sashes. The gable end of the ell features simple cornice returns. 

The east elevation has three-over-four attic lights, which are larger than the west end attic lights, and six-over-six double hung sash 
windows on the second floor. There is a fully-engaged, one-story, enclosed porch with bands of eight-over-eight double hung sash 
windows and side entrance door. According to the current owner, this porch was constructed in the 1980s, replacing an older 
porch. 

Approximately twenty five feet east of the house sits an agricultural outbuilding, which was previously identified as the Stephens-
Hopkins Milkhouse. The building appears to have served the dual function of a milkhouse and smokehouse. It is an 
approximately ten by twelve frame structure on a raised stone foundation. The floor of the lower level is partially submerged. 
There is vertical wood siding on the second floor and irregularly coursed stone masonry on the first floor. The gabled roof ridge 
line runs north-south and the roofing material consists of wood shingles. There is one small louvered window on the east 
elevation. There is an opening on the south side that provides access to the lower level, which was probably used for storing dairy 
products. Wood double doors on the west elevation provide access the upper level, which appears to have been used as a 
smokehouse. There is a one unit addition with a shed roof attached to the east elevation. 

The house is set back approximately 130 feet from the road and is approached by a gravel drive. The grounds contain several 
mature trees and bushes. There is a workshop located northeast of the house that was built by the current owner, using a mixture of 
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modern and historic materials. 

The property retains its historic location, but does not retain the integrity of its historic setting. The original 300 acre grant has 
been reduced to 1.68 acres. The existing two-story outbuilding is the only remaining agricultural building of what was once a 
working farmstead. The property's setting has been further altered by the construction of subdivisions on three sides of the 
property and the construction of a modern workshop. The property's historic design is evident in architectural elements such as the 
steeply pitched gable ends, period window sashes, chimneys, and dormers. However, the plan has been altered by additions and 
the fenestration was changed both during early twentieth-century renovations and more recent renovations. Alteration or 
replacement of historic building materials include the installation of vinyl siding and shutters, the removal and replacement of a 
porch on the east elevation, and the replacement of roofing materials with asphalt shingles. Historic workmanship is apparent in 
details such as the simple cornice returns on the gable end of the ell and the stone masonry and framing of the outbuilding, but has 
been partially obscured by alterations, such as the vinyl siding. Though the dwelling was most likely once a central component of 
a prosperous agricultural property, it no longer retains the feeling a late-eighteenth- or early-nineteenth-century farmstead due to 
the loss of integrity of the setting. 

The association with Harford County's colonial and agricultural history is not readily apparent, as the house is more reflective of 
trends in early twentieth-century architecture. Though connected to an early colonial land grant and its subsequent agricultural 
heritage, Rupalta no longer reflects its association with events that have made a significant contribution to the broad patterns of our 
history and is not eligible under Criterion A. The property is not associated with the lives of persons significant in our past and is 
not eligible under Criterion B. Due to alterations and enlargements, the property does not readily convey its origins as a late-
eighteenth/early-nineteenth-century farmhouse. Today, it is more reflective of the Colonial Revival style, but it is not a significant 
example of the style. Due to alterations and replacement of historic building materials, the property lacks architectural integrity 
and is not eligible under Criterion C, as it does not embody the distinctive characteristics of a type, period, or method of 
construction, or represent the work of a master, or possess high artistic value. The property was not evaluated under Criterion D. 
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HA-824 
RUPALTA 
Havre de Grace, Md. 

c. early 19th century 

A frame, four bay, two and a half story farm house and milk house on 
1.85 acres are material reminders of a 300 acre grant called "Rupalta", 
first laid off in 1661. Architecturally the house is a Georgian plan 
farm house enlarged and altered to reflect the changing needs and tastes 
of its occupants. Located in the rich agricultural land in the hills above 
Havre de Grace, the dwelling and milk house are still within the city limits. 

: 
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE 

"Rupalta" is a four-bay, two-and-a-half story, rectangular frame 
farm house,having a two-story el on the east side, north elevation 
and a low one-story enclosed porch extending across the east elevation.t 
The house, with 1.85 acres of land, faces south on Superior St. 
(State Route 155) Although in the hills above Havre de Grace, the 
property is within the city limits. It is covered with vinyl siding. 

A three-bay entrance porch on a stone foundation is on the facade 
(south elevation). A box cornice with a dentil band and plain frieze 
is supported by six columns separated by railings; above the cornice 
is a balcony with more railing. 

The first floor facade has an irregular fenestration pattern 
contrasting with the four evenly spaced second floor windows with 
pedimented dormers above them. All windows have 6/6 light sash with 
the exception of the modern casement arrangements on the main block 
facade, west end, and in the enclosed porch on the east elevation. 
On the south end of the porch, the casements are framed by pilasters. 

The main entrance is located in the central bay of the facade. 
The door, six-paneled with glass in the upper four panels, is flanked 
by sidelights of leaded glass with molded panels under them and a 
twelve-light transom. 

Both the main block and wing have gable end roofs, covered with 
asphalt. Brick chimneys rise from the interior ends of the main 
block. A tall, thin brick chimney is also located on the exterior 
of the east, gable, wall, main block. The roof has a plain box cornice. 

Outbuildings: 

On the east side of the dwelling is a frame milk house on a 
high random-rubble foundation, lighted by one crudely, framed, pegged 
window opening. Possibly, the structure,containing one room and a 
loft,was once a spring house. The first floor room has a below grade 
floor and plastered walls. While the first floor is entered through 
a door on the south side, the loft is entered through double doors 
on the west elevation. The gable roof is wood shingled. Attached to 
the structure on the east side is a one room addition of stucco over 
stone, frame and formstone with a tin shed roof. 

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY 
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE 

A frame, four-bay, two-and-a-half story farm house and a milk 
house on 1.85 acres are material reminders of a 300 acre grant called 
"Rupalta". First laid off in 1661 for Henry Stockett, who owned all 
the land, deeded to him by Godfrey Harmer in 1695, that was to become 
Havre de Grace, the land today is in sub-divisions. Some names 
associated with "Rupalta" in the 18th century are Barnes, Mitchell 
and Gover. The present house known as "Rupalta" was probably built 
in the late 18th or early 19th century. When James Mitchell died in 
1812, he owned all 300 acres of the "Rupalta" tract (Judgment Book 
G page 476). In 1880, the property came into the Hopkins family 
through the marraige of Cassandra Gover to Worthington Hopkins. 
Members of the Hopkins family, many of whom were prominent in the 
'ffairs of the town, lived in the house and ran a dairy farm there, 
hey had the house extensively remodeled on the interior around 1920 
and most of the land was sold to developers by a member of that family 
in the late 1950's. 

Architecturally the house is a Georgian plan farm house enlarged 
and altered to reflect the changing needs and tastes of its occupants. 
Located in the rich agricultural land in the hills above Havre de 
Graceithe dwelling and milk house are still within the city limits. 
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Rupalta LAND DEEDS 

GRG 711 17 May 23, 1966 
Grantors: Lawrence Salmela and Virginia, his wife 
Grantees: Clayton Stephens and Ila, his wife 
1.85 acres 

GRG 533 287 August 20, 1959 
Grantors: T. Ridgely Baker and Helen, his wife 
Grantees: Lawrence Salemla and Virginia, his wife 

GRG 510 4 September 12, 1958 
Grantor: Marcia L. Hopkins 
Grantees: T. Ridgely Baker and wife 
Thomas C. Hopkins by his Last Will and Tesament to Marcia (RLW 22 94) 

JAR 162 352 March 8, 1919 
Grantors: Lyman Perry and Elizabeth, his wife 
Grantee: Thomas C. Hopkins 
Known as part of a tract called "Rupalta", 80 acres. 

ALG 40 478 April 7, 1880 
Grantor: J. Thomas C. Hopkins, trustee 
Grantees: Worthington Hopkins and Cassandra, his wife 
$4,200.00 80 acres Equity Court - Being the same land on which 
they now reside and which was adjudged to Elizabeth Gover during 
her lifetime with remainder to her children by a payment in 
the Equity Court, May 18, 1843 in a suit of ejectment by Lewis 
Horts vs. James Gover. Casandra Hopkins nee Gover was the 
daughter of Elizabeth and James Gover. The case states there 
is one set of buildings on the land. 

HD 19 24 September 2, 1835 
Grantor: John Kean, Sheriff 
Grantee: James Gover 
James Gover purchased 200 acres called "Rupalta" for $183.42; 
the land was previously owned by Govers. 

HD 8 167 February 22, 1825 
Grantor: Robert Gover 
Grantee: George P. Gover 
$1,000 200 acres 

JLG K 158 October 11, 1788 
Grantor: Bennet Barnes, House Carpenter 
Grantee: James Mitchell, Yeoman 
300 acres 
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